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MCB Finance Group Plc

THE YEAR IN REVIEW
Final results for the 12 months ended 31 December 2012

MCB Finance Group Plc (AIM MCRB L) ("MCB", the "Group" or the “Company”), which provides
consumer finance solutions to retail customers in Finland, Estonia, Latvia, Lithuama and Australa,
today announces its audited results for the twelve month period ending 31 December 2012

Operational & Financial Highlhights

s Strong year-on-year iending volume growth Loan Principal Issued grew by 45% to €86 7m
(FY 2011 €60 Om),

¢ Revenue growth of 50% to €27 3m in the twelve months to 31 December 2012 versus the
comparable pnor year pernod (FY 2011 €18 2m),

¢ Credit quality maintained, with impairment costs of 18 9% of Revenue for 2012 (2011
16 0%), below strategically targeted levels,

e Operating Profit from Established Markets Businesses (Finland, Estonia, Latvia and
Lithuania) of €7 8 mithon in the twelve months to 31 December 2012, up 60% from the
comparable prior year period (FY 2011 €4 9m),

s Pro Forma Profit Before Tax from Established Markets Businesses of €4 Om in FY 2012, up
10% from the comparable prior year peried (FY 2011 €3 7m), and

s  Group Pro Forma Profit After Tax for the twelve months to 31 December 2012 of €1 7m
(FY 2011 €3 Om), after deducting costs relating to New Businesses, and before unrealised

foreign exchange differences and other nen-cash items

Business Overview

MCB Finance Group Is a leading consumer finance company providing fast, convenient and flexible
credit solutions under the Credit24 brand to retall customers in Finland, Estonia, Latvia, Lithuania
and Australla In Finland and the Baltic markets, the Company 1s an established and leading
provider of unsecured credit, providing loans up to €3,000 te qualifying customers with maturties of
up to two years Loan products are designed to suit customers’ needs, with simple and transparent
terms and flexible repayment schedules The Cempany operates in a segment of the market that 1s
typically under-served by larger financial institutions, and 1s focused on serving high qualty
customers with strong credit histories Loans are currently offered on-line through the Company’s
Credit24 branded websites in each market, as well as through certain distnbution partners
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THE YEAR IN REVIEW {continued)

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

The Group's Established Markets Businesses (consumer tending in Finland, Estoria, Latvia and
Lithuania) showed continued strong momentum, experiencing double digit year-on-year lending
volume growth for the twelve month period ending 31 December 2012 Loan Principal Issued to
customers during FY 2012 totalled €86 7m, an increase of 45% compared to the prior year period
(FY 2011 €60m) Credit performance remained strong 1n 2012 with Imparment Costs as a
percentage of Revenue of 18 9%, below the low end of the Group's target range The profit
contribution from Established Markets Businesses remained strong and 1s expected to continue to
grow In 2013 In addition, at the end of 2011, the Group began investing in selected new markets
and product capabilities identified as attractive areas for future growth and profitability

Eccnomic Environment

The economic environment in the Group's existing markets remaned generally stable with
estimated year-on-year GDP growth rates for 2013 ranging between 0 3% (Finland} and 3 8%
{Latvia) Unemployment has been on average fiat-to-declining in the Group’s established markets

GDP Growth Rates (% p.a.)

2011 2012 2013F 2014F
Finland 28% -02% 03% 12%
Estonia 8 3% 32% 30% 4 0%
Latvia 55% 5 3% 38% 41%
Lithuania 5 9% 36% 31% 36%
EU average 15% -0 3% 01% 16%
Australia 23% 35% 25% 30%

Source Eurostat 26/02/2013, Reserve Bank of Australia

Loan Principal Issued

2011-2012
(€ thousands) 2012 2011 2H2012 1H 2012 2H 2011  1H 2011 growth
Finland 31,127 28,026 15,611 15516 15,050 12,976 1%
Estonia 12,697 8,626 6,437 6,260 5,093 3,533 47 %
Lithuania 30,718 17,772 15,706 15,012 10,554 7.217 73 %
Latvia 12,139 5,565 6,341 5,798 3,564 2,001 118 %
Group Established
Markets 86,681 59,988 44,095 42,586 34,261 25,727 45 %
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THE YEAR IN REVIEW (continued)

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

Revenue

Total Revenue for the twelve month penod ending 31 December 2012 increased n all the Baltic

markets compared to the previous year Revenue for the twelve months to 31 December 2012 grew
by 50% to €27 3m (FY 2011 €18 2m)

Revenues

2011-2012
(€ thousands) 2012 2011 2H 2012 1H2012 2H 2011 1H 2011 growth
Finland 8,354 7,400 4,063 4,291 3,924 3,476 13 %
Estornia 5,508 3,397 3,024 2,485 1,928 1,469 62 %
Lithuania 9,035 5,755 4819 4215 3,283 2,472 57 %
Latvia 4,349 1,630 2,597 1,752 1,078 552 167 %
Group Established
Markets 27,246 18,182 14,503 12,743 10,213 7,969 50 %

Credit Quality

Overall credit quality remained strong dunng the pernod with expected loss rates for loan pools
granted during 2012 of 5 5%, below the low end of the Group’s 6%-7% target range Impairment
Costs for the twelve months ending 31 December 2012 were 18 9% of Revenues (2011 16 0%),
below the low end of the Group's 20-30% target range

Impairment Costs incurred in 2012 showed a return to more normal impairment levels from the
below-target impairment levels expenenced during 2011, which resulted from the Group’s then very
tight credit settings and an unusually high level of write-backs

Impairment

(€000s) 2012 2011 2010

Provisions for impairment related to

continuing lending operations 5,998 4,356 3,238
as % of revenue 22 0% 24 0% 27 5%

Impairment provison reversal 836 1,454 434

Proviston charged to statement of

comprehensive income 5,163 2,901 2,805
as % of revenue 18 8% 16 0% 23 8%
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THE YEAR IN REVIEW (continued)
FINANCIAL REVIEW
Established Markets Businesses

To facilitate comparnson and to provide greater transparency regarding underlying profitabiiity, we
have provided detarl on Established Markets Businesses and New Business performance
separately, as well as the proportion of central costs dedicated to supporting each area of activity
Detalls of the performance of Established Markets Businesses and New Businesses are provided
below

For the twelve month period ending 31 December 2012, Revenue for the Established Markets
Businesses was €27 2m, an increase of approximately 50% over the comparable prior year period
{(FY 2011 €18 2m) on lending volume of €86 7m, up 45% from the prior year penod (FY 2011
€60 Om)

Imparrment Costs totalled €5 1m for the twelve month period to 31 December 2012, equivalent to
approximately 18 8% of Revenue, up from €2 9m or approxamately 16 0% of Revenue in FY 2011
The low impairment levels 1n 2011 refiect the Group’s then tighter credit criteria and an unusually
high level of write-backs The Group has now returned to more normal impairment and write-back
levels, In ine with targeted levels, and expects these to remain in line with, or shightly above, current
levels going forward

Administrative and Direct Operating Expenses related to Established Markets Businesses for the
twelve month period to 31 December 2012 were €10 5m, equivalent to approximately 38% of
Revenue (2011 €7 9m, 43% of Revenue)

As a result, the Contribution Margin (profit from operations before unallocated central overhead and
financial costs) from Established Markets Businesses for the twelve months ending 31 December
2012 was €11 7m, an increase of approximately 57% over the prior year penod (2011 €7 4m) Al
Established Markets Businesses contributed positively to Group results

Established Markets Business Financral Performance

(€000s) 2012 2011 % change

Principal Lent 86,681 59,987 44 5%

Net Customer Loan Recelvables 33,074 22,360 49 %

Revenue 27,246 18,182 499 %

Impairment Costs -5,113 -2,901 762 %
as % of Revenue 18 8% 16 0%

Direct and Admin costs -10,463 -7.856 332%
as % of Revenue 384% 432%

Contribution Margin - Established Markets 11,670 7,424 572 %
as % of Revenue 42 8% 40 8%

Central Costs related to Established Markets -3,842 -2,554 504 %

Operating Profit - Established Markets 7,828 4,870 607 %
as % of Revenue 287% 268%

Allocating Central Costs between Established Markets Businesses and New Businesses, based on
activity and function, shows an Operating Profit for the twelve months ending 31 December 2012 for
Established Markets Businesses of €7 8m, up 61% from €4 9m n the comparable pricr year period
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THE YEAR IN REVIEW (continued)
New Business Costs & Consolidated Financial Performance

During 2012, the Company undertook a series of investments with a view to strengthening certain
central functions, to prepare and launch a ‘pilot’ project for consumer lending in Australia, and to
develop certain other new businesses identified by management and the Board as being attractive
areas of future growth Costs related to these actvites recogmised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income totalled €1 5m in the twelve month period to 31 December 2012 (2011
€nil) Capitalised development costs for 2012 related to these activities were €0 6m

New Business Costs & Consolidated Financial Performance
{recogmsed in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income)

(€000s) 212 2011 % change
Operating Profit - Established Markets 7,828 4,870 607 %
Operating Profit - New Business -1,513 -
Consolidated Operating Profit 6,315 4,870 297 %
Financing Costs -3,790 -1,200 2158%
Profit Before Tax 2,525 3670 -312%
Income Tax Expense -819 -702 166 %
Pro Forma Profit After Tax 1,706 2,967 -425%
Refinancing costs -80 -
Foreign exchange loss on borrowings -904 -
Gains/losses ansing on derivatives 9 -
Cost of employee share options -93 -94
Group Net Income 637 2,873 -764%

Consoldated Operating Profit for the twelve months ending 31 December 2012 was €6 3m (FY
2011 €4 9m), comprising €7 8m Operating Profit from Established Markets Businesses and €1 5m
Operating Losses related to New Businesses

Reflecting the recent maugural SEK bond 1ssue and the growth in the Group’s loan book, Net
Financing Costs for the twelve month penod ending 31 December 2012 were €3 8m, an increase of
€2 6m over the prior year peniod (FY 2011 €1 2m)

Excluding unreahised foreign exchange losses related to the Group's SEK bond, the gains and
losses arising on denvatives and the costs of employee share options, Profit Before Tax was €2 5m
for the twelve month peniod ending 31 December 2012 (FY 2011 €3 7m})

Pro Forma Profit After Tax was €1 7m for the twelve month pertod ending 31 December 2012 (FY
2011 €30m) The Company accrued a €0 8m tax hability for the year (FY 2011 €0 7m), pnmarnly
on account of its Finmish and Lithuaman operations, but also in relation to the Group’s Latvian
operations No corporation tax I1s payable in Estonia unless a distnbution 1s made
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THE YEAR IN REVIEW (continued)
New Business Costs & Consolidated Financial Performance (continued)

Including an unrealised foreign exchange loss of €0 9m and €0 09m costs relating to employee
share options, Group Net Income for the twelve month perod to 31 December 2012 was €0 6m,
compared to €2 9m for the pnor year period

Unrealised foreign exchange losses on borrowings are due to the Group’s SEK exposure in relation
to its SEK-denominated bond During the period from the 1ssuance of the two tranches of bonds in
March and July 2012, the Euro exchange rate weakened against the Swedish Krona, resulting in an
unrealised foreign exchange loss for FY 2012 of €0 9m

The Group’s SEK exposure 1s hedged using Eure/SEK currency options, which mit the Group's
exposure to a 5% weakening in the value of the Euro over the three year matunty of the bond
including the benefit from the offsething market value changes to the currency options, the net
impact on Shareholders’ Equity of foreign exchange movements relating to the Group’s SEK bond
duning 2012 was €-0 @m The figures are presented in the table on page 7

In May 2012, dividends of €0 8m were paid to shareholders in respect of the Group's financial
performance during 2011

Statement of Financial Position

As of 31 December 2012, Net Customer Loan Receivables totalled €33 3m (net of imparment
provisions), an increase of 49% from €22 4m at the end of 2011 As of 31 December 2012, Gross
Borrowings totalled €28 9 million, reflecting the bond principal outstanding, net of costs relating to
the offering in accordance with IAS 39 (31 December 2011 €13 7m) Net Debt as of 31 December
2012 totalled €23 3 milhion (31 December 2011 €11 5m) Cash & Cash Equivalents as of 31
December 2012 were €5 7m (31 December 2011 €2 2m)

The Group's Equity Ratio was 25 7% as of 31 December 2012 compared to 40 7% in the previous
year The Group’s Net Debt to Net Recewvables Ratio was 69 8% as of 31 December 2012
compared to 51 6% as of 31 December 2011

Summary Statement of Financial Position

(€000s) 2012 2011 % change
Net customer loan receivables 33,310 22,360 450 %
Cash 5,656 2,170 160 6 %
QOther assets 4,085 1,486 174 9 %
Total assets 43,051 26,017 655 %
Borrowings 28,915 13,700 1111 %
Net Debt 23,259 11,530 1017 %
Equity 11,086 10,586 47 %
Equity ratio ' 257 % 407 %

Equity / net recevables 333% 47 3 %

Net debt / assets 54 0% 44 3 %

Net debt / net receivables 69 8 % 516 %

(1) Equity / Total Assets
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THE YEAR IN REVIEW (continued)

New Business Costs & Consolidated Financial Performance {continued)

Bond Issue & Funding

On 8 March 2012, the Group completed a SEK 200 million (€22 4 million) asset-backed bond ssue
to investors in the Nordic region The issue constituted a first closing under a bond facility through
which the Group can raise up to SEK 500 million, with the majonty of proceeds from the 1ssue used
to refinance the Group’s €17 million credit facility with Rietumu Bank and to fund the continued
growth of the Group's consumer loan portfolio

On 2 July 2012, the Group completed a second 1ssue of asset-backed bonds totaling SEK 60
milhon (€6 8m)

The bonds 1ssued in March and July 2012 rank as senior obhgations of the Group, are secured
against the Group's outstanding customer loan recewvables, have a maturity of three years and
carry a fixed coupon of 13% per annum, paid quarterly in arrears The bonds are affilated to
Euroclear and are listed on the Corporate Bond List of NASDAQ OMX

To ensure flexibifity regarding its future funding and capital needs, the Group secured bondholder
approval in January 2013 for a change to the current definitton of its Equity Ratio covenant to altow
the 1ssuance of a range of subordinated capital instruments, in addition to common equity The
Group also secured approval from its bondholders for a change in the terms and conditions of its
bond agreement relating to the currency denomination of future bond 1ssues, which will allow the
issuance of Euro-denominated, in addition to Swedish Krona denominated, bonds The issuance of
bonds denominated 1n Euros would have the effect of reducing the Group's foreign exchange nisk
and reduce the associated hedging costs relating to nen-Euro denominated 1ssues

As part of its continued growth and development strategy, the Group 15 expected to have on-going
financing needs, which it envisages meeting through a combination of future debt, equity and
subordinated capital 1Issuance

New Business Development

During 2012, the Company undertook a senies of investments with a view to strengthening certain
central functions, to develop its Established Markets Businesses further, and to develop certain
New Businesses identified by management and the Board as being attractive areas of future
growth In July 2012, the Company launched a consumer lending business In Australia, trading
under the Credit24 brand, to address the market opportunity presented by a population of
approximately 22 milhon against a combined population in the Company's established markets of
12 mihon In addition, the Company continued its development of a propnetary on-line sales
finance platform, which was launched in December 2012 in Lithuania, and further developed its
existing lending and credit systems to maintain competitiveness and facilitate the introduction of
new and more flexible consumer credit products and services

Regqulatory Environment

In Finland, parhament has approved changes to the regulatory environment which are expected to
come Into force duning 2013, including certain annual percentage rate and fee imitations and
enhanced requirements for consumer lenders MCB welcomes the development, which has clanfied
the regulatory framework in the Finmsh market
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THE YEAR IN REVIEW (continued)
New Business Costs & Consolidated Financial Performance (continued)

Requlatory Environment {(continued}

In January 2012, Lithuania introduced a strengthened regulatory regime, including certain annual
percentage rate imitations The introduction of additional requirements for the industry had a
generally positive impact on MCB Finance in Lithuamia since the requirements favour consumer
lenders with stronger organisations and rigorous lending processes

The Company maintains an active role in these and other regulatory processes, and remains
confident of its ability to comply fully with its obligations in this regard

Qutlock

The Company continues to experience strong customer demand and expects sustained lending
volume and revenue growth in its Established Markets Businesses in future periods Credit
performance remains strong and cost increases related to Established Markets Businesses are
expected to be moderate, allowing the Group to realise operating leverage to its earnings as
lending volumes continue to grow

The Group has invested a total of €2 1m in 2012 to strengthen various central functions, to upgrade
its technology platforms, to develop a number of new product lines in existing markets, as well as to
enter additional new markets as part of the Company's strategy to expand geographically Qver
time, we expect entry into addiional markets and categones to contnbute significantly to the
Group's overall growth and profitability

REVIEW OF COUNTRY OPERATIONS

The Group's current operations in Finland, Estonia, Latwia, Lithuama and Australa together
contributed €7 25m n pre-tax profits in 2012, excluding Group central costs, an increase of 17%
from €6 22m in 2011 All countnes were profitable dunng the year, excluding Australia, which was
launched in July 2012

The Group's central functions, based in Tallinn and Helsinki, comprise its senior management,
credit and financial control, systems development and maintenance, and certain other key central
functions Total costs for the central organisation were €4 7m 1n 2012, up from €2 6m in 2011,
including €0 88m relating to additional management and platform development costs associated
with the Company's online sales finance and other new business initiatives

Profit before tax

(€000s) 2012 2011 change
Finland 2,093 2,319 -10 %
Estonia 1,821 1,340 36 %
Latvia a03 463 95 %
Lithuania 3,064 2,101 46 %
Total Established Markets 7,882 6,224 27%
Australia -630 -

Total New Businesses -630 -

Group Total 7,252 6,224 17 %
Central Costs -4,709 -2,554 84 %
Group Profit Before Tax 2,542 3,670 31%
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THE YEAR IN REVIEW (continued)
REVIEW OF COUNTRY OPERATIONS (continued)
Finland

Finland 1s the Group's largest market, representing 36% of principal 1ssued during 2012, down from
47% during 2011 Lending volumes increased 11% while Profit Before Tax was €2 1m, compared to
€2 3m in 2011 The expansion of the product range and launch of the new customer service
website during the year were well received Impairment was 24 6% of revenue, within the Group’s
target range Direct and administrative costs rose 19%, manly due to increased lending volumes
and marketing expenditure

(€000s) 2012 2011 % change

Loan principal issued 31,127 28026 119

Net customer loan receivables 10,551 9,023 17 %

Revenue 8,354 7,400 13%

Impairment -2,057  -2,083 1%
as % of Revenue 246 % 281%

Direct and admin costs -3,028 -2,552 19 %

Finance costs -1,176 -447 163 %

Profit Before Tax 2,093 2,319 10 %
as % of Revenue 25 0% 31 3%

Estonia

Lending volumes in Estonia grew 47% to €12 7 million during 2012 Profit before tax grew 36% to
€1 8m, up from €1 3m in 2011 Impairment costs were 18% of revenue The increase in Direct and
administrative costs reflected higher lending volumes

(E000s) 2012 2011 % change
Loan principal 1ssued 12,697 8,626 47 %
Net customer loan receivables 6,059 3,897 55 %
Revenue 5,508 3,397 62 %
Impairment -990 -157 531 %
as % of Revenue 18 0% 4 6%
Direct and admin costs -1,936 -1,666 16 %
Finance costs -762 -234 226 %
Profit Before Tax 1,821 1,340 36 %
as % of Revenue 331% 395%

10
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THE YEAR IN REVIEW (continued)

REVIEW OF COUNTRY OPERATIONS (continued)

Latvia

Latvian growth has been strong after the Group re-launched its operations in the market in late
2010 Lending volumes grew 118% to €12 1m in 2012, while Impairment costs increased to 25 8%
of revenue, reflecting more normal provision costs as a percentage of revenue post the re-launch of
the business Profit before tax was €0 9m in 2012

(€000s) 2012 2011 % change
Loan principal 1ssued 12,139 5,565 118 %
Net customer loan receivables 4,685 2,231 110 %
Revenue 4,349 1,630 167 %
Impairment -1,121 142 n/a
as % of Revenue 25 8% -8 7%
Direct and admin costs -1,758  -1,194 47 %
Finance costs -567 -114 397 %
Profit Before Tax 903 463 95 %
as % of Revenue 20 8% 28 4%

Lithuania

Lithuania recorded strong lending volume growth during the year, reflecting the Group’s position as
one of the largest non-bank lenders In the market Lending volumes were up 73% to €30 7m
(FY2011 €17 8m) year-on-year Profit before tax increased to €3 1m, up from €2 1m in 2011
Impairrment costs remained low at 10% of revenue, reflecting strong credit performance and write-

backs

(€000s) 2012 2011 % change

Loan principal 1ssued 30,718 17,771 73 %

Net customer loan receivables 11,779 7,210 63 %

Revenue 9,035 5,755 57 %

Impairment -945 -804 18 %
as % of Revenue 10 5% 14 0%

Direct and admin costs -3,742 -2 444 53 %

Finance costs -1,282 -406 216 %

Profit Before Tax 3,065 2,101 46 %
as % of Revenue 33 9% 36 5%

M
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THE YEAR IN REVIEW {continued)

REVIEW OF COUNTRY OPERATIONS (continued)

Australia

The Company’s Australian business was launched in July 2012 in an initial ‘pilot’ phase to test
market receptivity and the Company's credit settings for the market Loan principal issued through

to the end of December 2012 was €0 3m and Profit before tax was €-0 6m Operating losses for the
business reflect the recent launch of the operation

{€000s) 2012 2011 % change

Loan principal issued 272 - nfa

Net customer loan

receivables 236 - n/a

Revenue 27 - n/a

impairment -850 - n/a
as % of Revenue 181 5%

Direct and admin costs -605 - nfa

Finance costs 0 - n/a

Profit Before Tax -631 - n/a
as % of Revenue n/a

12
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

1. Rami Ryhanen
Chief Executive Officer (Age 45)

Mr Ryhanen has been CEOQO of the Company since its inception in 2005, and has been at the
forefront of the development of the non-bank lending market in the Fenno-Baltic region  Prior to
joining MCB, Mr Ryhidnen spent two years as CEO of Jippu Mobile Entertainment Oy, a mobile
entertainment service provider based in Helsinki, where he managed operations in 20 countries
Following its return to profitability, he led the sale process of Jippi to ltouch ple He previously held
senior roles, including CEO of Small Planet Limited and Customer Relationship Director of Sonera
Oy] Mr Ryhanen holds an MBA from the Institute for International Management Centers

2 Paul Aylieff (Appointed 17 September 2012)
Chief Financial Officer (Age 48)

Mr Aylieff has over 25 years' experience In corporate and investment banking, having worked Iin
London and New York In a range of senior positions in Corperate Finance, Mergers & Acquisitions
and Corporate Banking, most recently for RBS, Bank of America and Merrill Lynch At Bank of
Amenca Mernll Lynch, he was Head of EMEA Corporate Banking, following the two firms merging
in January 2009 Paul holds an M A in Economics from Cambndge University and an M Sc In
Accounting and Finance from the London School of Economics

3. Henry Nilert
Head of Corporate Development (Age 41)

Mr Nilert joined the Company as CFQO in March 2006, and has had an integral role in building the
Company Into a leading provider of credit solutions in its markets  Prnor to joining MCB, Mr Nilert
was a Partner of Crystal Capital Partners LLP, a private eguity advisory firm based in London
Previously, he co-founded lobox, a wireless software company, where he was Chief Operating
Officer, before its sale to Terra Mobile SA Mr Nilert previously worked in investment banking in
London, New York and Helsinki He graduated from Dartmouth College with a B A in Political
Sciences

Non-Executive Directors

4. Dr. Anton Mayr
Non-Executive Chairman (Age 50)

Dr Mayr, who has been a Non-Executive Director of the Company since its inception in 2005, has
close to 25 years of combined entrepreneunal, venture capital and prnvate equity and legal
expenence He 1s the founder and Managing Director of Stratos Ventures Inc, a United States
venture development company Dr Mayr was also co-founder and Managing Partner of the Stratos
Ventures Finnish early stage ICT venture capital fund with offices in Helsinki, Finland and
Calfornia He was a founder and CEO of Phytonium Pharmaceuticals LLC, an early stage
research-based bwomedical company based in Califormia, and also worked previously as an
investment manager at Citicorp Venture Capital in Germany and at the New York City law firm
Pryor, Cashman, Sherman & Flynn Dr Mayr holds a Dr wr (doctorate in law) from Salzburg
University Law School, Austria as well as an LLM from McGeorge School of Law and an MBA from
Columbia Umiversity Business School

5. Philippe Duleyrie
Non-Executive Director (Age 55)

Mr Duleyrie bnings over 15 years' expenence n financial services for the under-banked He 15 a
Senior Advisor at The Rye Group LLC, a strategic advisory firm in global money transfer, electronic
payments and pre-paid cards Previously, his roles have included President of Amencas at Polar
Electro Inc, President - Consorcio Onental, SVP Marketing and VP of Worldwide Business
Development at MoneyGram and Director of Business Development at Western Union He
graduated from New York University with a B A in Economics and holds an MBA from the Wharton
School of the University of Pennsylvamia
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DIRECTORS’' REPORT

The Directors present therr annual report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2012

Principal activity

MCB Finance Group Pic 1s the parent company for the group providing flexible credit solutions to
retall customers In Finland, Estonia, Latvia, Lithuanta and Australa

Business review and future developments

A review of 2012, together with an outlook on future developments, 1s contained in the Year in
Review on pages 2 to 12

Results and dividends

The profit attributable to shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2012 was €636,772 (2011
profit of €2,872,889) as set out In the consohidated statement of comprehensive income on page 21

Dividends totalling €772,149 were paid to shareholders during the year (2011 €nil) No dividends
are proposed for 2012

Directors
Biographies of the current Directors, all of whom served during the year, are set out on page 13
Directors’ interests

At the end of the year, the following Directors had beneficial interests in the Company’s Shares
Beneficial interest in the Company’s Ordinary shares

of 10p each
2012 201
Number % Number %
Rami Ryh&nen 124,542 0.7 124,542 07 (@)
Henry Nilert 1,228,222 7.0 987,222 59 (9]
Philippe Duleyne 803,861 4.6 544 211 33

(a) Held through Solotel Oy
(b) 669,603 shares held directly (2011 428,603), and the remaining shares held through Birch
Holding Limited

Directors’ emoluments

The directors received the following emoluments and held the following number of options over the
ordinary shares of the Company in 2012

31 December 2012:

Salary / Bonus Benefits Share incentive plans
Fees

€ € Options held at Options  Exercise
31 December exercised price

2012 during 2012
Rami Ryhénen 161,589 140,780 16,235 642,000 - -
Paul Ayheff 116,000 - - - - -
Henry Nilert 169,440 140,778 - 466,362 241,000 41 0p
Anton Mayr 65,000 - - 107,500 - -
Philippe Duleyrie 50,000 - - 107,500 - -
562,029 281,558 16,235 1,323,362 241,000 -

14




MCB Finance Group Plc

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)
Directors’ emoluments {continued)

31 December 2011:

Salary/ Bonus Benefits Share incentive plans*
Fees
€ € Options held at Options Exercise
31 December granted price
2011 dunng 2011

Rami Ryhanen 132,786 24,000 11,214 642,000 250,000 41p — 76p
Henry Nilert 144,000 24,040 - 707,362 250,000 41p - 76p
Anton Mayr 45,000 - 107,500 107,500 B54p — 76p
Philippe Duleyne 30,000 - 107,500 107,500 54p - 76p
351,786 48,040 11,214 1,564,362 715,000 -

*All share options granted since June 13th 2011 are exercisable only If a tngger price of 150p per
share 1$ reached See Note 13(g)

Share options exercised during the year

Durning the year a director of the Company, H Nilert, exercised options over 241,000 ordinary shares
of 10p each in the Company with an exercise price of 41p per share The gain made on the
exercise of those shares was €112,656 Rietumu Bank exercised its option to purchase 724,760
ordinary shares of 10p each in the Company with an exercise price of 45p per share An employee
of the Company exercised their options over 10,000 ordinary shares of 10p each in the Company
with an exercise pnce of 50p per share The new Ordinary shares rank pan passu with existing
Ordinary shares

Donations
No donattons or payments te chanties or political parties were made during the year
Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's objectives and policies in relation to financial nsk management are set out in Note 21
to the financial statements on page 52

Creditor payment policy

The Group does not follow any code or standard on payment practice, but seeks to agree the terms
of payment with the suppliers at the time of contract and to make payment in accordance with those
terms subject to satisfactory performance As at 31 December 2012, average creditor days were
30(2011 28)

Capital Management

The Group’s policy 1s to finance working capital through retained earnings and through borrowings
at prevailling market interest rates To mit the Group's exposure to financial risk in respect of its
1ssued SEK-denominated bond, the Group uses Euro/SEK currency options The currency options
hmit the Group’s exposure to a maximum 5% weakening in the value of the Euro over the three
year hfe of the bond The Group does not actively use any other financial instruments as part of its
financial nsk management The Group’s objectives in relation to financial instruments are set out in
Note 21 to the financial statements

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Group's approach and response to risks and uncertainties 1s set out in the Year in Review and
in Note 21 to the financial statements
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MCB Fmnance Group Plc

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)
Significant shareholdings

The significant shareholdings 1n the Company as at 31 December 2012 were as follows

Notifier No of shares  Percentage of issued ordinary shares
MC Global Limited 7,659,039 43 37%
{IU Nominees Limited 2,581,281 14 62%
Orient Equity Partners 2,129,504 12 06%
Henry Nilert * 1,228,222 6 95%
P Lorange 844,021 4 78%
P Duleyne 803,961 4 55%
Europanel AB 740,000 4 19%
Conils Ltd 681,577 3 86%
Hansa Eastern European Equity Fund 533,333 302%

* 669,603 shares held directly (2011 428,603), and the remamning shares held through Birch
Holding Limited

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Corporate Social Responsibility approach adopted throughout the Company reflects the
Group’s core values and business practices The Board believes that responsible and ethical
conduct 1s fundamental to the Group’s everyday business, and considers Corporate Social
Responsibility as a set of principles that assist in determining best business practices The Group I1s
committed to follow laws and regulations, as well as to meet its obligations towards its stakeholders

Responsibiity towards stakeholders includes actions and dialogue between the stakeholders, only
offering responsible products and services, and maintaining transparent and clear communication
with customers, employees and Investors

The Group pays attention to the leadership and well-being of its personnel The Group 1s committed
to equal opportunity and diversity Selection criteria are geared strictly to seleching candidates who
have the best experience and skills for job  Recruitment methods are reviewed regularly The
Group 1s committed to ensunng the health, safety and welfare of its employees, customers,
suppliers and visitors

Corporate and director’s indemnity

The Group maintains corporate and directors' indemnity insurance

Statement of disclosure of information to auditors

In so far as the Directors are aware

there 1s no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditors are unaware, and
the Directors have taken all steps that they ought to have taken t¢ make themselves aware
of any relevant audit information and to establsh that the auditors are aware of that
information
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MCB Finance Group Plc

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)
Auditors
Mazars LLP have agreed to offer themselves for reappointment as Auditors of the Company and a

resolution requesting approval of therr reappointment and to authonse the Directors to determine
therr remuneration will be presented at the Annual General Meeting

Annual General Meeting
The date for the Annual General Meeting will be announced in due course

By Order of the Board

——

<

enry Nilert
Company Secretary
Waverley House
7-12 Noel Street
London
W1F 8GQ

25 Apnl 2013
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MCB Finance Group Plc

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The following statement sets out the responsibilities of the Directors in relation to the financial
statements The report of the auditors, shown on pages 19 and 20, sets out their responsibilities in
relation to the financial statements

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year that give
a true and far view of the state of affars of the Company and the Group as at the end of the
financial year and of the profit or loss of the Group for the financial year in accordance with
applicable United Kingdom law and those International Financial Reporting Standards adopted by
the European Union

In preparing those financial statements, the Directors are required to

. select appropriate accounting policies and apply them consistently,

. make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

. state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed subject to any matenal
departures being disclosed and explained, and

. prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis, unless they consider it to be
Inappropriate

The Directors confirm that the financial statements comply with the above requirements

The maintenance and integnty of the Company’s website 1s the responsibility of the Directors
Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of the financial
statements may differ from legislation in other junisdictions
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MCB Finance Group Plc

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF MCB FINANCE GROUP PLC

For the year ended 31 December 2012

We have audited the financial statements of MCB Finance Group Plc for the year ended 31
December 2012, which compnse the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, the Company
Statement of Financial Position, the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, the
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, the Company Statement of Cash Flows, the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity, the Company Statement of Changes in Equity and the related
notes The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law
and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union and, as
regards the parent Company financial statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act 2006

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities set out on page 18, the
directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that
they give a true and fair view

Our responsibility Is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require
us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s (APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors This report
IS made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of
the Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for
no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility
to anyone other than the Company and the Company’'s members as a body for our audit work, for
this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements Is provided on the Financial Reporting
Council's website at www frc org uk/auditscopeukprivate

Opinion on the financial statements

In cur opinion

« the financial statements give a true and farr view of the state of the Group's and of the Parent
Company'’s affairs as at 31 December 2012 and of the Group's profit for the year then ended,

+ the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as
adopted by the European Union,

e the parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with
IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and as applied in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act 2006, and

e the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006

Opinion on the other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements
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MCB Finance Group Plc

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF MCB FINANCE GROUP PLC

{continued)

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the followming matters where the Companies Act 2006

requires us to report to you if, In our opinion

s adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent Company, or returns adequate

for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us, or

» the parent Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and

returns, or
« certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

» we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

/2;"@ ~ 76&%6

Rudiger Lang (Senior statutory auditor)

for and on behalf of Mazars LLP, Chartered Accountants {Statutory auditor)
Tower Bridge House

St Kathanne's Way

London E1W 1DD

16 Bpdl2o 3
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MCB Finance Group Pic

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2012

2012 2011

Note € £
Revenue 3 27,273,652 18,181,618
Imparrment {5,162,811) {(2,901,202)
Direct operating expenses (4,614,610) (3,022,076)
Administrative expenses (11,337,841) (7,482,559)
Operating profit 6,158,390 4,775,781
Interest recevahble 968 805
Interest payable (3,791,031) (1,201,274)
Financing foreign exchange losses on borrowings (904,178) -
Gain/ losses ansing on derivatives 20 9,436 R
Profit before income tax 4 1,473,585 3,575,312
Income tax expense 6 (819,202) {702,423)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 654,383 2,872,889
Other comprehensive iIncome (17,611) -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE
TO THE EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT 636,772 2,872,889
Proforma profit calculation
Profit befare tax 1,473,585 3,575,312
Cost of employee share options 93,438 94,216
Foretgn exchange losses on borrowings 904,178 -
Gains / losses arising on derivatives {9.436) -
Refinancing Costs 80,450 -
Proforma profit before taxation 2,542,215 3,669,528
Taxation {819,202) (702,423)
Proforma profit after taxation 1,723,013 2,967,105

Earnings per share from continuing operations attributable to the equity holders of the

Company during the year

Basic earnings per share 7
Diluted earnings per share 7

2012 201
€ €

0 0367 01672
0.0361 0.1672

All of the activities of the Group during the year are classed as continuing

As permitted by Section 408({1) of the Companies Act 2008, the Company's income statement has
not been included In these financial statements The Company's loss for the year and total
comprehensive loss for the year atinbutable to equity shareholders was €334,473 (2011

€370,707)

The accompanying notes on pages 27 to 54 form an integral part of these consohdated financial

statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2012

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Goodwill & intangible assets
Property, plant and
equipment

Deferred tax asset

Trade and other receivables

Total non-current assets

Current assets
Trade and other receivables

Denvatives
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Note

10

12

12
20

2,410,088

99,505
120,600
3,483,736

30,363,172

918,344
5,655,941

Equity attributable to owners of the parent

Issued share capital

Share premium account
Capital redemption reserve
Fareign exchange reserve
Share option reserve
Retained earnings

Total equity

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Current income tax habilities
Deferred revenue
Short-term borrowings

Total current liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities
Long Term Borrowings

Tatal equity and habilities

he financial statements on pages 21 to 54 were approved by the
horlsed for 1Issue on 25 Apnl 2013 and were signed on its bg

Company No 06032184

13

14

15

15

2,558,960
5,006,558
102,317
39,281
511,713
2,866,919

1,900,260
306,635
843,459

28,915,284

2012

6,113,929

36,937,457

43,051,386

11,085,748

3,050,354

28,915,284
43,051,386

A

2011

872,224

52,596
161,031

1,616,611

2,702,462

21,144,100

2,170,410

23,314,510

26,016,972

2,440,143

4,601,606

102,317
21,670
519,570

2,901,001

10,586,307

1,108,055
115,251
507,359

13,700,000

15,430,665

26,016,972

Board of Directors and

Chief Financial Officer

The accompanying notes on pages 27 to 54 form an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements
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MCB Finance Group Plc

COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December 2012

2012 2011
Note € € € €
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Investments In subsidiaries 11 9,794,747 9,794,747
Total non-current assets 9,794,747 9,794,747
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 12 5,304 322,485
Cash and cash equivalents 17 17 1,540
Total current assets 5321 324,025
Total assets 9,800,068 10,118,772
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Issued share capital 13 2,658,960 2,440,143
Share premium account 5,006,558 4,601,606
Capital redemption reserve 102,317 102,317
Foreign exchange reserve 21,670 21,670
Share option reserve 511,713 519,570
Retained earnings 1,352,318 2,357,645
Total equity 9,653,536 10,042,951
Current habilities
Trade and other payables 14 246,532 75,821
Total current habilities 246,532 75,821
Total equity and liabilities 9,800,068 10,118,772

The financial statements on pages 21 to 54 were approved by the Board of Directors and
uthonsed for 1Issue an 25 April 2013 and were signed on its behalf by

F

P Ayli
Chief Financial Officer

Company No 06032184

The accompanying notes on pages 27 to 54 form an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements
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MCB Finance Group Plc

CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2012

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 201
Note € € € €
Cash flow {used in)/generated
from operating activities
Cash (used in)/generated from
operations 17 (9,385,276) (7,282,986) 245,404 82,412
Income tax paid (746,167) (774,570) - -
Net cash (used in)/generated
from operating activities {10,131,443) (8,057,556) 245,404 82,412
Cash flow from investing
activities
Investment in subsidiares - - - (1)
Purchase of property, plant and
equipment {99,910) (46,133) - -
Purchase of intangible assets {1,251,474) (94,557) - -
Gain from disposal of property, _ 20 _
plant and equipment ~
Net cash used In investing
activities {1,351,384) (140,620) - N
Cash flow from financing
activities
Issue of share capital 525,222 - 525,222 -
Repayments on borrowings (13,700,000) - - -
Proceeds from borrowings 28,915,284 8,500,000 - -
Dwvidends paid {772,149) - (772,149) -
Share buyback - (81,292) - {81,292)
Net cash from/(used In)
financing activities 14,968,357 8,418,708 (246,927) {81,292)
Increase/(decrease) In cash
and cash equivalents 3,485,531 220,532 (1,523) 1,119
Cash and cash equivalents at
1 January 17 2,170,410 1,949,878 1,540 421
Cash and cash equivalents at
31 December 17 5,655,941 2,170,410 17 1,540

The accompanying notes on pages 27 to 54 form an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements
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MCB Finance Group Plc

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

As at 31 December 2012

Share
capital

€

Attributable to the owners of the Company

Capital Foreign Share
Share redemption exchange options Retained

premium reserve rasarve reserve earnings

€ € € € €

Total
€

Balance at 1
January 2011

2,542,460

8,453,870 - - 556,428 (3,852,264)

7,700,494

Comprehensive Income

Profit for the financial
penod

2,872,889

2,872,889

Total
comprehensive
income

2,872,889

2,872,889

Arising on employee
share options
Ansing on employee
shares option lapsed
and cancelled durning
the perod

Arising on share
buyback

Reduction in share
premum

(102,317)

94,216 -

(131,074) 131,074

102,317 21,670 = (102,962)

(3,852,264) = - = 3,852,264

94,218

(81,292)

Total

(102,317)

(3,852,264) 102,317 21,670 (36,85 3,880,37

12,294

Balance at 1
January 2012

2,440,143

4,601,606 102,317 21,670 519,57 2,801,0(

10,586,307

Comprehensive income

Profit for the financial
penod

Other comprehensive
income

636,77

636,77.

Total
comprehensive
income

636,772

636,772

Ansing on the
exercise of
employee share
options

Ansing on employee
shares option lapsed
dunng the penod
Amount charged to
the employee share
option reserve
Translation
differences on
foreign currencies

Dividends

118,817

404,952 - - (41,221) 41,221

{60,074) 60,074

93,438 -

17,611 - -

(772,149)

523,768

93,438

17,611

(772,149)

Total

118,817

404,952 - 17,611 (7,857) {670,854)

(137,331)

Balance as at 31
December 2012

2,558,960

5,006,558 102,317 39,281 511,713 2,866,919

11,086,748

The accompanying notes on pages 27 to 54 form an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements




MCB Finance Group Plc

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

As at 31 December 2012

Attributable to the owners of the Company

Capital Foreign Share
Share Share Retained
redemption exchange options Total
capital premium reserve  reserve reserve earnings
€ € € € € € €
Balance at 1
January 2011 2,542,460 8,453,870 - - 556,428 (1,152,024) 10,400,734
Comprehensive Income
Loss for the financial
penod - - - - - (370,707) (370,707)
Total comprehensive
income - - - - - (370,707) (370,707)
Ansing on employee
share options - - - - 94,216 - 94,216
Ansing on employee
shares option lapsed and -
cancelled during the perod - - - - (131,074 131,074
Ansing on share (81,292)
buy back (102,317) - 102,317 21,8670 - {102,962) '
Reduction in share prermium - (3.852.264) _ _ 3,852,864 _
Total (102,317} (3,852,264) 102,317 21,670 (36,858) 3,880,376 12,924
Balance at 1 January
2012 2,440,143 4,601,606 102,317 21,670 519,570 2,357,645 10,042,951
Comprehensive income
Loss for the financial
period - - - - - (334,473) (334,473)
Other comprehensive _
income - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income - - - - - (334,473) {334,473)
Arising on the exercise of
employee share options 118,817 404,952 - - (41,221) 41,221 523,769
Arising on employee
shares option lapsed
during the penod — — — - (60,074) 60,074 -
Amount charged to the
employee share option
reserve - - - - 93,438 - 93,438
Dividends - - - - {772,149) {772,149)
Total 118,817 404,952 - - (7,857) (670,854} {154,942)
Balance at 31
December 2012 2,558,960 5,006,558 102,317 21,670 511,713 1,352,318 9,553,536

Share capital relates to the nominal value of shares 1ssued Share premium relates to the amounts
subscribed for share capttal in excess of the nominal value of the shares The capital redemption
reserve anses following the share buy-back by the Company which reduces the Company’s share
capital

The foreign exchange reserve anses on the translation differences that result from foreign
currencies as a result of share buyback transactions and the consolidation of foreign subsidianes

Share option reserve anises on the grant of share options to employees under the employee share
option plan

Retained earnings relates to cumulative profits and losses recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income

The accompanying notes on pages 27 to 54 form an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements
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MCB Finance Group Plc

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012
General information

MCB Finance Group Plc ('the Company') and its subsidianes (together, ‘the Group'} provides credit
solutions under the Credit24 brand to retail customers in Finland, Australia and the Baltic countries
of Estonia, Latvia and Lithuania The Company 15 a public imited company which 1s listed on the
Alternative Investment Market (AIM), a sub-market of the London Stock Exchange, and 1s
incorporated under the Companies Act and 1s registered and domiciled in England and Wales The
address of Its registered office 1s Waverley House, 7-12 Noel Street, London, W1F 8GQ

Basis of preparation

The consoldated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with, and comply with,
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”), as adopted by the European Union The
functional currency of the Company 1s the pound sterling (£) The financial information 15 presented
in Euros and has been prepared under the historical cost convention and on a going concern basis
Set out below 1s a summary of the more important accounting policies, which have been applied
consistently tc the prior period

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain criticai
accounting estimates It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group's accounting policies The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in note 2

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and
entities controlled by the Company (ts subsidianes) The results of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the statement of comprehensive income from the
effective date of acquisition (when control 1s acquired) or up to the effective date of disposal (when
control I1s lost), as appropriate

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring therr
accounting policies into ine with those used by other members of the Group

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consclidation Non-
controliing interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are identified separately frem the
Group's equity therein

Going concern

As a result of the increased focus on working capital and tighter credit controls, the Group has
improved both its short-term and medium-term lgquidity positon The Group's forecasts and
projections, taking account of reasonably possible changes n trading performance, show that, in
order to meet the growth strategy, the Group will strengthen 1s funding position

As part of its continued growth and development strategy, the Group 1s expected {0 have on-going
financing needs, which 1t envisages meeting through a combination of future debt, equity and
subordinated capital iIssuance The Group has a SEK 500m senior secured bond facility, of which it
has utiised SEK 260m In addition, in March 2013, the Group completed the 1ssuance of SEK 50m
of subordinated unsecured bonds under a new SEK 100m bond facility

The Group also secured approval from its bondholders for a change in the terms and cenditions of
its senior bond facility agreement relating to the currency denomination of future bond 1ssues, which
allows the issuance of Euro-denominated, in addition to Swedish Krona denominated, bonds The
issuance of bonds denominated in Euros would have the effect of reducing the Group's foreign
exchange nsk and reducing the associated hedging costs relating to non-Euro denominated 1ssues

The Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue tn
operational existence for the foreseeable future The expectations are based on the strategy of the
group, maintenance of sufficient funding for the growth of the business and the adequate resources
in the Group tc ensure the quality its operations, as well the development of its operations
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MCB Finance Group Plc

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Going concern {continued)

On this basis, these consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the assumption that
the Group continues as a going concern

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

{a) New and amended standards, and interpretations, mandatory for the first time for the financial
year beginmng 1 January 2012 but not currently relevant to the group (although they may affect the
accounting for future transactions and events)

IFRS 7 (amendment) — ‘Financial instruments’ — effective 1 July 2011

IFRS 1 {amendment) — ‘Hyperinflation and Removal of fixed dates for first-ttme adopters’ —
effective 1 July 2011

IAS 12 (amendment) — 'Deferred tax’ — effective 1 January 2012

The above revised standards have not had any wnpact on the group’s financial statements in the
current year The group will apply the above standards prospectively to all future transactions and
events

(b) New standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not effective for the financial year
beginning 1 January 2012 and not early adopted

IFRS 1 (amendment) — ‘Government Loans’ — effective 1 January 2013

IFRS 7 {amendment) — ‘Financial Instruments’ — effective 1 January 2013

IFRS 9 - ‘Financial instruments’ - effective 1 January 2015

IFRS 10 — 'Consolidated financial statements’ — effective 1 January 2014

IFRS 11 - 'Joint arrangements’ - effective 1 January 2014

IFRS 12 — ‘Disclosures of interests in other entittes’ — effective 1 January 2014

IFRS 13 - 'Fair value measurement’ — effective 1 January 2013

IAS 1 (amendment) — ‘Presentation of items of other comprehensive income’ — effective 1 July 2012
|AS 19 (amendment) — ‘Employee benefits’ — effective 1 January 2013

IAS 27 (revised 2011) — ‘Separate Financial statements’ — effective 1 January 2014

I1AS 28 (revised 2011 — ‘Associates and joint ventures’ — effective 1 January 2014

IAS 32 (amendment) — ‘Financial instruments’ — effective 1 January 2014

IFRIC 20 (interpretation) — ‘Stripping costs in the production phase of a surface mine’ - effective 1
January 2013

The Directors do not anticipate that the adoption of these interpretations in future reporting periods
will have a matenal impact on the Group's results

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker The chief cperating decision-maker, who I1s responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as
the senior management team that makes strategic decisions The senior management team
consists of the CEQ, the CFO and the Head of Corporate Development The members of the senior
management team were members of the Board of Directors in 2012

Goodwill

Goodwill anising on consolidation represents the excess of the fair value of the consideration paid
over the farr value of the identifiable assets acquired
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MCB Finance Group Plc

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

For the purpose of imparirment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination 15 allocated to
each of the cash generating units that 1S expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination
Each unit to which the goodwill i1s allocated represents the lowest level within the entity at which the
goodwill 1s monitored for internal management purposes Goodwill 1s monitored at the operating
segment level

Goodwill arising on each acquisition 15 renewed annually or more frequently If events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential mpairment The annual imparment review considers the
companson of carrying value to discounted cash flows over a penod of 5 years Goodwill 1s initially
recognised as an asset at cost and 1s subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses Any imparment 1S recognised mmediately as an expense and 15 not
subsequently reversed

On disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amount of goodwill 15 included in the determimation of
the profit or loss on disposal

Intangible assets

Intangible assets consist of trademark and other hcenses, software, goodwill and unfinished
software development, as well as a credit licence in respect of the acquired company Intangible
assets are stated at acquisition cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses

Amortisation 1s provided to wnite off the intangible asset over the penod the Group expects to use
the assets on a straight-hne basis The credit hicence 1s amortised at a rate of 20% per annum The
costs related to the credit icence of the acquired company are depreciated over five years using a
straight-ine method For all other classes of intangble assets, the pnncipal annual rate of
amortisation is 33% per annum

Software development recognised in the balance sheet 1s identifiable and the costs are measurable
The asset I1s expected to generate future economic benefits Unfinished software capitalised in 2012
will be amortised once completed and In use Capitalised software development will be amortized
on a straight-line basis over its useful life

Where there 1s an indication of mpairment, the directors carry out an impairment review to consider
the carrying value to the estimated aggregate future economic benefit derived from the intangible
assets Any impairment 1s recognised immediately and charged to the statement of comprehensive
income Impairment losses may be reversed in future periods If appropnate

Intangible assets have a finite estmated useful life and amortisation 15 included n both ‘direct
operating expenses’ and ‘administrative expenses' 1n the statement of comprehensive income

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or far value on acquisition less depreciation
Depreciation is provided at rates calculated to wnte off the cost less the estimated residual value of
each asset over its expected useful economic life on a straight-line basis The residual value Is
estimated taking into account obsolescence, technological developments and expected proceeds
on disposal The principal annual rate for this purpose 1s 33% per annum in relation to office
equipment, being the Group’s only current class of property, plant and equipment

The carrying value of property, plant and equipment i1s assessed annually and any impairment 1s
charged to the statement of comprehensive income

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments In subsidiaries are stated at cost less, where appropnate, provisions for impairment
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1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments

Financial instruments are classified and accounted for according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements, as either financial assets, financial habilities or equity instruments An equity
instrument 1s any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after
deducting all of its habilites

Financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial hiabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument

Trade and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market are classified as loans and recevables Trade and other receivables include
customer loan recewvables Customer loan receivables are initially measured at fair value
Apprepnate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income based on histoncal expenence

Loans and recewvables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment Interest iIncome Is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-
term receivables when the recognition of interest would be immatenal

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand, deposits and other short-term
highly iquid investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to
an insignificant nsk of changes in value Cash and cash equivalents include cash held In escrow
rarsed through the issuance of senior secured bonds and not yet deployed as 1ssued principal
Under the terms and conditions of the Company's senior secured bond facility agreement, cash can
be drawn from the escrowed account based on a pre-agreed percentage of issued net loan
receivables

Trade and other payables are inthally measured at far value, net of transaction costs, and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method  Interest expense Is
recognised on an effective yield basis in the statement of comprehensive iIncome Borrowings and
trade and other payables are categornised as other financial liabilities

Borrowings are recognised imitially at farr value, net of transaction costs incurred Borrowings are
subsequently camed at amortised cost, any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value 1s recogmsed In the statement of comprehensive iIncome over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest method

Fees paid an the establishment of loan facilihes are recognised as transaction costs of the loans to
the extent that it 1s probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down The fee 15 deferred
until the draw-down occurs, and 1S recognized immediately in profit or loss If the draw-down 15 not
expected to occur

Equity instruments 1ssued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds receved, net of direct
ISsue costs

Derivative financial instruments

The Company uses derivatives to hedge its currency exposure on issued SEK-denominated bonds
Dervatives are inihally measured at cost and subsequently measured at fair value through the profit
or loss statement The denvatives are classified as current assets The carrying amount at the
reporting date represents accumulated changes in the farr value of dervative financial instruments
Changes In the fair value of derivatives are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income
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1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
Share Capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity Incremental costs directly attnbutable to the issue of new
ordinary shares or options are shown i equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds

Revenue

Revenue represents fees and interest receivable in respect of loans granted during the year, as well
as the fees and interest receivable from loans issued in the prior period if their matunity extends into
the year Fees and interest are recognised on a hme-proportion basis using the effective interest
method Fees from penalty interest include reminder fees and collection procedure fees Reminder
and collection fees are recognised on settlement

Foreign exchange
(1) Foreign currencies

Assets, liabilities, revenues and costs expressed in foreign currencies are translated into the
reporting currency at the rate of exchange ruling on the date of the transaction, except for monetary
assets and labtlites, which are translated at the reporting date Differences ansing on the
translation of such items are dealt with in the statement of comprehensive iIncome

(1) Foreign operations

The iIncome and expenses of foreign operations are translated into the reporting currency at the
rate of exchange ruling on the date of the transaction Exchange differences ansing on the
translation of opening reserves are recognised directly in equity The assets and labilities of
foreign operations, both menetary and non-monetary, are translated into the reporting currency at
exchange rates ruling at the reporting date

(m} Year end exchange rate

In respect of the Company, the applicable year end exchange rates were €1 1933/£1 (2011
€1 956/£1) The average exchange rate for the year was €1 2332/£1 (2011 €1 1514/£1)

The subsidiaries report locally in currencies with year end exchange rates as follows €1=07028
LVL, €1=3 4528 LTL, €1=1 2712 AUD, €1=8 6166 SEK The average exchange rates for the year
were €1=0 7028 LVL, €1=3 4528 LTL, €1=1 2401 AUD Estonia and Finland are both Eurozone
countrnies

Leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the statement of comprehensive income over
the term of the relevant lease Leases in which a sigruficant portion of the nsks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases Benefits received and
receivable as an incentive to sigh an operating lease are similarly spread on a straight-ine basis
over the lease term, except where the period to the review date on which the rent 1s first expected
to be adjusted to the prevailing market rate 1s shorter than the full lease term, in which case the
shorter period is used

Taxation and deferred taxation

Income tax expense represents the current year tax charge The tax currently payable i1s based on
taxable profit for the year Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the statement of
comprehensive Income because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and 1t further excludes tems that are never taxable or deductible The
Group's hability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date
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1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation and deferred taxation {continued)

Deferred tax 1s recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and habilities 1n
the financial statements and the corresponding tax base used In the computation of taxable profit,
and are accounted for using the balance sheet iability method

Deferred tax habilites are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it 1s probable that taxable profits wil be available
against which deductible temporary differences can be utiised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that sufficient taxable profits are unlikely to be available in the short term to allow all or part
of the asset to be recovered Deferred tax Is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the period when the liability 1s settled or the asset realised Deferred tax 15 charged or credited to
profit or loss, except when 1t relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the
deferred tax 1s also dealt with in equity

Deferred tax assets and labilities are offset when there I1s a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets aganst current tax liabilities and when they relate to iIncome taxes levied by the
same taxation authonty and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and habilities on a net
basis

Employee share options

The Group Issues equity-settled share-based instruments to its employees Equity-settled share-
based instruments are measured at farr value at the date of grant The farr value determined at the
grant date of the equity-settled share-based instrument 1s expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting penod, based on the Group’s estimate of the number of shares that will eventually vest

At each reporting date, the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected
to vest as a result of the effect of non market-based vesting condiions The impact of the revision
of the oniginal estimates, If any, 1s recognised in the profit or loss such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the equity-settled employee
benefits reserve

When options are exercised, the Company 1ssues new shares The proceeds received net of any
directly attnbutable transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) and share
premium

2 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are beileved to be reasonable under the
circumstances

2.1 Critical judgements in applying the entity’s accounting policies
{a) Recoverability of customer loan receivables

The Group makes allowances for bad debts based on estimates of the recoverability of receivables
outstanding Customer balances are deemed to be impaired as soon as any one monthly payment
1s over 30 days n arrears The Group has undertaken research to determine future cash flows and
estimate potential credit losses Estmated future cash flows are based on the histoncal
performance of customer balances falling into different arrears stages There 1s no guarantee that
management's estmates will prove reliable In the long term  An increase in the level of credit
losses will have an adverse impact on the profitability of the Group
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Notes to the consclidated financial statements (continued)
2 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS {(continued)
2.2 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future, which by definition will seldom
result in actual results that match the accounting estimate The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant nsk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and
labilities within the next financial year are discussed below

(a) Estimated impairment of goodwill
The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment in accordance with the
accounting policy related to goodwill stated in Note 1 The recoverable amount of cash-generating
units has been determined based on value in use calculations These calculations require the use
of estimates as set out in Note 9

{b) Employee share options

In order to calculate the charge for share-based compensation, the Group makes estimates
principally relating to the assumptions used in its option-pricing model as set out in Note 13
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements {continued)

3 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

All of the Group's revenue 15 generated from the one business class of consumer lending In
Finland, Estonia, Latvia, Lithuania and Australia The operations are managed and monitored by
the senior management team as a single business segment The Group operates in the following
geographical segments, which are grouped based on the reporting structures in use by the Group

Loan principal
issued

Net customer
receivables

Revenue
Impairment
as a % of revenue

Finance costs

Segment measure
of profit

as a % of revenue

Central expenses

Proforma profit
before tax

Foreign exchange
losses on
borrowings

Gains / losses

ansing on
denvatives

Refinancing costs

Cost of employee
share options

Profit before tax

2012
Finland Estoma Lithuama Latvia Australia Total
31,127,211 12,697,473 30,718,229 12,138,774 272,443 86,954,130
10,550,976 6,059,421 11,778,792 4,684,569 236,531 33,310,289
8,353,680 5,508,372 9,035,178 4,349,117 27,305 27,273,652
(2,057,226) {989,741) {945,166) (1,120,936) {49,742) {5,162,811)
25% 18% 11% 26% 182% 19%
(1,176,202) {761,650) (1,281,782) {566,687) (3,741) (3,790,062)
2,092,559 1,821,103 3,064,605 903,345 (630,578) 7,251,034
25% 33% 34% 21% - 27%
(4,708,819)
2,542,215
{904,178)
9,436
{80,450)
{93,438)
1,473,585
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3 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)
2011

Finland Estonia Lithuania Latvia Total
Loan principal issued 28,025,839 8,625,730 17,771,070 5,565,403 59,988,042
Net customer recervables 9,022,647 3,896,716 7,210,029 2,230,633 22,359,925
Revenue 7,400,034 3,396,850 5,754,787 1,629947 18,181,618
Impairment (2,082,510) (156,728) {803,736) 141,772 (2,901,202)
as a % of revenue 28% 5% 14% {9%) 16%
Finance costs _(446,569) (234,205) (405,680} (114,015) (1,200,469)
Segment measure of profit 2,318,768 1,340,113 2,101,248 463,477 6,223,606
as a % of revenue 31% 40% 37% 28% 34%
Central expenses {2,554,078)
Proforma profit before tax 3,669,528
Cost of employee share
options (94,216)
Profit before tax 3,575,312

The only significant assets and liabilities at subsidiary segmental level are net customer loan
receivables All revenues are derived from the Group's principal activity of consumer lending No
one customer in the current or prior year accounted for more than 10% of revenue
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4 PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE TAXATION

The profit on ordinary activities before taxation I1s stated after charging/(crediting)

2012 2011

€ €

Staff costs (see Note 5) 4,013,150 2,339,323

Operating leases 155,209 108,668

Provisions for mpairment related to continuing operations 5,998,130 4,355,639

Net credit write-backs 835,319 1,454,437

Net foreign exchange losses 7,456 2,606
Auditors’ remuneration

- Audit of these financial statements 47,388 35,201

- Audit of the Company's subsidiaries 71,121 51,111

- Other services 3,953 -

- Taxation services - advisory 500 995

- Taxation services — compliance 844 180

- Other services 5,297 1,175

Amortisation of intangible fixed assets (see Note 9) 85,727 33,499

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (see Note 10) 52,999 26,593

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment - (70)

Direct operating costs are expenses that are directly related to the Group's lending operations,
including mpairment to customer loan receivables and costs related to loan processing, monitoring
and collection The provisions for impairment for continuing operations are based on the analysis of
expected credit losses The analysis 1s based on regular review of non-performing loans, collection
performance and the maturity structure of loan recewvables Administrative expenses include
overhead, marketing and other expenses related to the Group's business

5 DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES

Staff costs including directors’ emoluments
2012 2011
€ €
Wages and salaries 3,182,742 1,754,744
Social secunty costs 778,188 490,363
Share based compensation 52,220 94,216
4,013,150 2,339,323

Included in the above are Directors’' emoluments of €843,585 (2011 €399,826) The highest paid
director received emoluments of €318,604 (2011 €168,040) The highest paid director did not
exercise any share options in 2012 Reference 1s made to the directors’ emoluments disclosure in
the Directors’ Report

The average monthly number employed including executive directors

2012 2011

Senlor management 3 2
Support staff 66 52
69 54

Notes to the consolidated financial statements {continued)
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6

TAXATION

TAX EXPENSE

Current year expense
Over provided n prior years

Current tax

Deferred tax expense related to the ongination and reversal of
temporary differences

Total tax expense

TAXATION RECONCILIATION

2012 2011

€ €
776,694 781,417
- (254)
776,694 781,163
42,508 (78,740)
819,202 702,423

The charge for the year can be reconciled to the consolidated statement of comprehensive Income
as follows

Tax rate
Profit before tax

Tax on profit before tax at tax rate
Tax effect of different rates on different tax junsdictions

Tax effect of income not taxable

Tax effect of tax losses for which no deferred tax was
recognised

Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for determining
taxable profits

Tax effect of expenses decreasing the profit for tax purposes
Tax effect of adjustments in respect of pnior years

Utihsation of tax losses carried forward

Deferred tax assets recognised

Tax expense

2012 Total 2011 Total
€ €

24.5% 26%
1,473,585 3,575,312
361,028 929,581
(262,858) (166,012)
(45,521) (237,939)
606,829 96,385
504,898 289,943
(152,385) (48,104)
- (254)
(235,297) (82,437)
42,508 (78,740)
819,202 702,423

No corporation tax anises in Estonia unless a distnbution 1s made No distribution has been made In
the current or prior year and so no liability to corporation tax arises in this country Taxation for

other jurisdictions 1s calculated at the rates prevalling in the respective junisdictions

The applicable tax rate in Finland 15 24 5% (2011 26%), in Latwia 15% (2011

15%) and In

Lithuania 15% (2011 15%) Tax losses carnied forward in Latvia at the end of the penod were €nil
(2011 €235,297)
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6 TAXATION (continued)

Due to local tax legisiation rules, bad debts in Latvia are shown under “tax effect of expenses that
are not deductible for determining taxable profits” within the calculation However, during 2009, the
Company obtained a ruling from the tax authonties, which enables the Company to deduct part of
its bad debts In the taxation calculation within certain criteria and subject of certain hmitations The
impact of this ruling 1s shown under “tax effect of expenses decreasing the profit for tax purposes”

In Lithuania during 2010, the Company was able to secure confirmation from the tax authorities on
the issue of deductibility rules of bad debts This confirmation enables the Company io deduct part
of its bad debts under certain crtena and limitations Impact related to the previous penods 15
shown separately under “tax effect of adjustments in respect of prior years”

DEFERRED TAX
Provisioning Other Total
Finland Lithuania Lithuania
€ € € €
Deferred tax assets at 1 January 2012 56,780 25,091 420 82,21
Credited to the statement of comprehensive 49,357 27,667 1,717 78,741
income
At 31 December 2012 106,137 52,758 2,137 161,032
Credited to the statement of comprehensive 8,521 (50,084) 1,131 (40,432)
income
At 31 December 2012 114,658 2,674 3,268 120,600

Deferred tax was recognised on bad debt provisions of €41563 (2011 €77,024), at a rate
dependent on the country of onigin  In Latwa, there were unrecognised temporary differences of
€221,107 dunng the year (2011 €138,757) related to the non-utihsation of credit losses for tax
purposes These were not recognised as the Latwian subsidiary has unutiised tax losses Tax
losses carred forward in Latvia at the end of the penod were €nil {2011 €235,297)

In MCB Finance Australia Pty, there were unrecognised temporary differences of €316,662 (2011
€nil) during the year This related to the non-utilsation of losses for tax purposes in 2012 and
previous years These were not recognised as the Australian subsidiary 1s currently a loss-making

unit The non-utiised losses for tax purposes are expected to be recognised In the future as the
subsidiary returns to profitability

7 EARNINGS PER SHARE
{a) Basic

Basic earnings per share 15 calculated by dividing the profit attnbutable to equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue dunng the year

The calculation of basic earnings/{loss} per ordinary share I1s based on

2012 2011
Number Number
Weighted average number of Ordinary shares in 1ssue
dunng the penod 17,356,045 17,189,042
Profit for the penod (€) 636,772 2,872,889
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7 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)
{b) Diluted

Diluted earnings per share 15 calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares The Company
has one category of dilutive potential shares and share options A calculation 1s undertaken to
determine the number of shares that could have been acquired at farr value (determined as the
average annual market share price of the Company’s shares) based on the monetary value of the
subscnption nghts attached to outstanding share options The number of shares calculated as
above 1s compared with the number of shares that would have been 1ssued assuming the exercise

of the share options

The calculation of diluted earnings per share s based oh

2012 2011
€ €
Earnings
- profit attributable to equity holders of the company 636,772 2,872,889
2012 2011
Number Number
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 17,356,045 17,189,042
Adjustments for dilutive effect of
- employee share options 291,014 136
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for diluted 17,647,059 17,189,178

earnings per share

The average share price during the year was 65 91p (2011 41 01p) In calculating the weighted
average number of ordinary shares for calcutation of diluted earnings per share, only those share
options which are exercisable and with an exercise price below the average share price will have a
dilutive impact Further, all share options granted since July 2011 can only be exercised subject to
a tngger prnice of 150p being reached and sustained for a minimum of twenty business dates (note

283,000 share options with an exercise pnce of 41 Op and 762,362 share options with an exercise
price of 50 Op (note 13) have a dilutive iImpact on the earnings per share

8 DIVIDENDS PER SHARE

During the year, dividends totalling €772,149 were paid to shareholders (2011 €nil} tn respect of a
final dividend, declared for the results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011

No intenim or final dividend has been proposed for the year ended 31 December 2012
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9 INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS AND GOODWILL
Group Trademarks
and Other
Licences Software Goodwill Total
€ € € €
At 1 January 2011
Cost 41,532 97,438 737,723 876,693
Accumulated amortisation (34,084) (31,442) - (65,526)
Net hook amount 7,448 65,996 737,723 811,167
Year ended 31 December
2011
Opening net book amount 7,448 65,996 737,723 811,167
Addrtions 71,144 23,413 - 94,557
Amortisation (5,562) (27,937) - (33,499)
Closing net book amount 73,029 61,472 737,723 872,224
At 31 December 2011
Cost 112,676 120,851 737,723 971,250
Accumulated amortisation (35,647) (59,379) - (99,026)
Net book amount 73,029 61,472 737,723 872,224
Group Trademark
and Other Software
Licences Software Development Licenses Goodwill Total
€ € € € € €
Year ended 31
December 2012
Opening net book
amount 73,029 61,472 - - 737,723 872,224
Additions 362,014 73,540 614,386 201,534 372,117 1,623,591
Amortisation (22,868) (43,167) - (15,694) — (85,727)
Closing net book
amount 412,177 91,845 614,386 181,840 1,109,840 2,410,088
At 31 December
2012
Cost 474,690 194,392 614,386 201,534 1,109,840 2,594,841
Accumulated
amortisation {62,513) (102,546) - (19,694) - (184,753)
Net book amount 412,177 91,845 614,386 181,840 1,109,840 2,410,088
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9 INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS AND GOODWILL (continued)

The directors consider the useful Iife of the credit licence to be 5 years, and for all other classes of
Intangible fixed assets to be 3 years The amortisation of intangible assets of €85,727 (2011

€33,499) 1s included In direct operating expenses and administrative expenses, respectively, in the
statement of comprehensive income as follows

2012 2011

Included within € €
- direct operating expenses 74,071 25,005

- admimstrative expenses 11,656 8,494

Total amortisation charge 85,727 33,499

Goodwilll relates to the Group's acquisition of MCB Finance AS and its subsidiary undertakings in
2006 and the Group's acquisition of MCB Finance Australia Pty in March 2012 The directors review
goodwill for evidence of impairment on an annual basis For the purposes of goodwill impairment
testing, the values included within the statement of financial position of MCB Finance AS are
determined based on value-In-use calcutations These calculations use projections covering a five-
year period for the purpose of impairment testing of goodwill Cash flows beyond the five-year
period are extrapolated using estimated growth rates Based on this analysis, the values reported in
the statement of financial position of MCB Finance AS are significantly above the carrying value of
the goodwill

Impairment tests for goodwill

Goodwill 1s allocated to the Group's cash-generating units (CGUs) identified according to operating
segment The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impatrment, in accordance
with the accounting policy stated in Note 1 The recoverable amount has been determined based
on value-in-use calculations These calculations require the use of estimates Goodwill I1s allocated
to the Group's CGUs as follows

2012 2011

€ €

MCB Finance Estonia Ou 368,862 368,862
MCB Finance Finland Qy 368,861 368,861
MCB Finance Australia Pty 372,117 -

1,109,840 737,723

The recoverable amount of a CGU 1s determined based on value-in-use calculatons These
calculations use projections based on financial budgets approved by management for the purpose
of goodwill Impairment testing covering a five-year period Cash flows beyond the five-year period
are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated below

The key assumptions used for annual impairment review are as follows

2012 Estimates 2011 Estimates
Finland Estomia Australia Finland Estonia
% % Yo % %
Growth rate (<1 year) 5.0 5.0 5.0 50 50
Growth rate (2 — 5 years) 5.0 5.0 5.0 50 50
Long-term growth rate (>5 years) 3.0 3.0 3.0 30 30
Gross margin {<5 years) 70.9 74 8 74.8 68 8 739
Discount rate (<5 years) 18.7 19.0 183 251 251
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9 INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS AND GOODWILL (continued)

For the purposes of testing goodwill Impairment, management used budgeted gross margins based
on past performance and its expectation of future gross margins for the forecast peniod The growth
rates used for future periods are based on management's expectations of future growth The
discount rates used reflect an estimate of the company’s weighted average cost of capital

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Office
Group Equipment
At 1 January 2011 €
Cost 157,837
Accumulated depreciation (124,713)
Net book amount 33,124
Year ended 31 December 2011
Opening net book amount 33,124
Additions 46,133
Disposals (1,770)
Depreciation charge {26,593)
Depreciation on disposals 1,702
Closing net book amount 52,596
At 31 December 2011 ¢
Cost 202,200
Accumulated depreciation (149,604)
Net book amount 52,596
Year ended 31 December 2012
Opening net book amount 52,596
Additions 99,908
Depreciation charge (62,999)
Closing net book amount 99,505
At 31 December 2012
Cost 302,108
Accumulated depreciation (202,603)
Net book amount 99,505

The total depreciation charge dunng the year i1s included within administrative expenses in the
statement of comprehensive iIncome
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1" INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
Company

€
At 1 January 2011 9,794,746
Additicns 1
At 31 December 2011 9,794,747
At 1 January 2012 9,794,747
At 31 December 2012 9,794,747

{A) INVESTMENTS DURING THE YEAR
There were no further additions to investments durnng the year
(B) SUMMARY OF SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS

The Company owns 100% of the share capital of MCB Finance AS, a holding company which 1s
incorporated in Estornia  MCB Finance AS owns 100% of the 1ssued share capital of the following
companies, all of which provide consumer financial products and services

- MCB Finance Estonia Ou, a company incorporated in Estonia

- MCB Finance UAB, a company incorporated in Lithuania

- MCB Finance Latvia SIA, a company incorporated in Latvia

- MCB Finance Finland Oy, a company incorporated in Finland

- MCB Finance Australia Pty, a company incorporated \n Australia

The reporting date of the subsidiary undertakings 1s 31 December 2012 with the exception of MCB
Finance Australia Pty who report to an accounting reference date of 30 June

In addition, MCB Finance AS owns 100% of the issued share capital of the following companies

- MCB Treasury AB, a company incorporated in Sweden
- Sving Finance UAB, a company incorporated in Lithuania

MCB Treasury AB 1s an internal financing company, handiing activities related to the Group's bond
financing arrangements There were now operations in Sving Finance UAB during 2012 The
Group’'s online sales financing business, which was launched in December 2012, 15 currently
conducted through MCB Finance UAB

12 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Current receivables

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 201
€ € €
Customer loan receivables 37,855,954 25,597,256 -
Less provision for impairment of trade
receivables (8,029,402) (4,853,942) - -
Customer loan receivables - net 29,826,552 20,743,314 -
Amounts due from group undertakings - - - 311,369
Other recetvables 536,620 400,786 5,304 11,116
30,363,172 21,144,100 5,304 322,485
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12 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Non-current receivables

Group Company
2012 201 2012 201
€ € € €
Customer loan receivables 3,660,161 1,724,259 - -
Less provision for impairment of trade
receivables {176,425) (107,648) - -
Customer loan recevables — net 3,483,736 1,616,611 - -

Current and non-current trade and other receivables are measured at amortised cost The directors
consider that the carrying value of the financial instrument approximates to their fair value

All nen-current recevables are due within five years of 31 December 2012
Bad debt provisions

Customer loan recevables are stated net of bad debt provisions The movement in the bad debt
provision during the year 1s as follows

Group Company
2012 201 2012 2011
€ € € €
At 1 January 4,961,590 4,288,261 - -
Charge for the year 5,998,130 4,355,639 - -
Amounts wntten off dunng the year {2,753,894) (3,682,310) - -
At 31 December 8,205,826 4,961,590 - -

The provisions charged to the statement of comprehensive income during the period were
€5,998,130 (2011 €4,355,639) Dunng the year, there were impairment provision reversals of
€835,319(2011 €1,454 437)

The other classes within trade and other receivables do not contain impaired assets

The maximum exposure to credit nsk at the reporting date 1s the carrying value of each class of
receivable The Group does not hold any collateral as securnty

Bad debt provistons are evaluated on a monthly basis The evaluation 1s based on an analysis of
the receivables in the balance sheet and estimated credit losses, which determines any Increase in
bad debt provision or reversal of impairments Net Receiwvables are also audited by country on a
quarterly basis under the Terms and Conditions of the Company's bond facility agreement

Past due but not impaired

As of 31 December 2012, all trade recewables past due have been imparred in accordance with the
Group's policies
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13 CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL

2012 2011
Number of 10p Number of 10p
shares € shares €
Authorised
Ordinary shares of 10p each 30,000,000 3,678,900 30,000,000 3,678,900
Issued and fully paid
Ordinary shares of 10p each 17,670,007 2,558,960 16,694 247 2,440,143

The Group has one class of ordinary shares, which carry no right to fixed income
{A) SHARE ISSUES DURING THE YEAR

During the year, a total of 975,760 (2011 nil) ordinary shares were 1ssued following the exercise of
share options 1ssued, as follows

On 30 March 2012, a Director exercised options over 241,000 ordinary shares of 10p each in the
Company, with an exercise pnce of 41p per share

On 2 May 2012, Rietumu Bank exercised its option to purchase 724,760 ordinary shares of 10p
each In the Company with an exercise price of 45p per share The option had been granted to
Rietumu Bank in March 2010 in connection with the renewal of the Company’s credit facility in place
with the bank at the time

On 30 November 2012, an employee of the Company exercised their options of 10,000 ordinary
shares of 10p each in the Company with an exercise price of 50p per share

The new Ordinary shares rank part passu with existing Ordinary shares
{B) SHARE CANCELLATION AND CAPITAL REDUCTION

In the prior year, the shareholders approved a reduction in the Company’s capital As a result, the
consolidated share premium account was reduced by €3,852,264 from €8,453,870 to €4,601,606
The retained earnings account was increased by the same amount

In addition, during 2011, a share buyback was approved of 700,000 of the Company’s 10p Ordinary
shares at 10p from two directors, R Ryhdnen (100,000 Ordinary shares) and H Nilert (600,000
Ordinary shares) The total consideration paid amounted to £70,000 These shares represented
4 02% of the called up share capital of the Company Subsequently, these shares were cancelled,
reducing the number of Ordinary shares from 17,394,247 to 16,694,247 The buyback and
subsequent cancellation of these 700,000 shares has the effect of increasing the shareholders’
percentage of the Company by 4 02%

A capital redemption reserve of €102,317 anses following the share buy-back by the Company,
which reduces the Company’s share capital

Mr Ryhanen and Mr Nilert acquired the 700,000 ordinary shares in December 2010 when they
became available at a substantial discount to the then market pnce, with the intention that the
Company would in due course seek the necessary approval to buy in these shares for cancellation
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(C) SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company operates a share incentive plan, under which share options have been granted to
directors and selected employees as descnbed below

Options Cancelled/ ﬂ,ttaiogs Shtatre oor
ancelle outstandin at time ¢
Date granted outstanczlgg Issued Exercised lapsed as at 31 9 Exerase grant/
Janu aa; 201 1 opitans De;g:nzber price modification

Directors

05 February 2007 482,000 — (241,000} - 241,000 41p 150p

05 February 2007 302,000 - - - 302,000 50p 45p

28 February 2008 65,362 - - - 65,362 50p 45p

28 July 2011 357,500 - - - 357,500 54p 55p

28 July 201 357,500 - - - 357,500 76p 55p
Employees

05 February 2007 128,000 - - (73,000) 55,000 50p 45p

05 February 2007 76,000 - - (34,000) 42,000 41p 150p

5 November 2007 20,000 - - (20,000) - 176 5p 176 5p

15 February 2008 10,000 - (10,000) - - 50p 45p

15 February 2008 45,000 - - - 45,000 115p 115p

24 May 2010 65,000 - - (40,000) 25,000 50p 51 5p

28 July 201 100,000 - - (40,000) 60,000 S4p 55p

28 July 2011 100,000 - - (40,000) 60,000 76p 55p

24 Apnl 2012 - 20,000 - - 20,000 50p 67 5p

26 Apnil 2012 - 250,000 - - 250,000 50p 68 5p

16 May 2012 - 176,600 - - 176,600 100p 63p

01 June 2012 - 176,600 - - 176,600 100p 55p

2,108,362 623,200 (251,000) (247,000) 2,233,562

Share options are granted to directors and to selected employees Options are conditional on the
employee completing three years’ service (the vesting period) for options granted prior to 2011, and
four years for options granted starting 2011

During the year 31 December 2012, 623,200 options were 1ssued over the ordinary shares of the
Company {2011 955,000) One-sixteenth of the options granted vest at the end of each calendar
quarter, subject to the holder remaining an employee of the Company None of these options
lapsed or were exercised dunng the year The weighted average exercise price of the share
options granted during the year was 65p (2011 65p)

All share options granted since 13th June 2011 are exercisable only If a tngger pnce of 150p 18
reached, defined as the average closing price of the Company's ordinary shares for a minimum
penod of twenty business days

Duning the year 247,000 options lapsed as a result of those share option holders ceasing
employment with the Company The weighted average exercise price of the share options that
lapsed during the year was 83 9p Those share options that have lapsed do not represent a gain to
the Company

During the year, 251,000 share options were exercised At 31 December 2012, the Company had
2,223,562 (2011 2,108,362) options outstanding with a total of 750,362 (2011 1,128,362)
exercisable at the year end The options outstanding at 31 December 2012 had a range of exercise
prices of 41p to 100p (2011 41p to 176 5p) and a weighted average remaining contractual Iife of
2 7 years (2011 2 5 years)
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13 CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Fair value of options

The fair values of awards granted under the share option scheme have been calculated using an

option valuator that 1s based on the Black-Scholes-Merton model The following principal
assumphions were used in the valuation

2012 2011
Expected dividend yield nil nil
Expected volatility 50% 50%
Risk-free interest rate 5.5% 55%
Employee turnover 2.5% 25%

Expected volatility was based on an expectation of the amount by which the Company's share price
was estimated to fluctuate during the options’ lives and 1s expressed as the annualised standard
deviatton of the continuously compounded rate of return of these shares, and 15 in line with
comparable companies The expected Iife used in the medel has been adjusted based on
management's best estimate for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restnctions and
behavioural considerations

Based on the above assumptions, the following has been calculated

2012 2011
Fair value of options granted 45p-634p 45p-634p
Number of options outstanding as at 31 December 2,233,562 2,108,362
Weighted average exercise price of the options outstanding at the 64.0p 55p
year end
Weighted average fair value of the options granted duning the year 47.3p 65 0p

The above assumptions have also been used n calculating the impact from the extension of the
expiry penod of options

Expense ansing from share-based payments
Based on the above fair values and the Company's expectations of employee turnover, the expense

ansing from share options granted to employees was €93,441 (2011 €94,216)

14 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
€ € € €
Trade payables 754,554 416,952 - -
Other taxation and social security 492,287 194,098 - -
Other payables 197,554 214,433 - -
Amounts owed from group companies - - 158,544 -
Accruals 455,865 282,572 87,988 75,821
1,900,260 1,108,055 246,532 75,821

Trade and other payables are measured at amortised cost The directors consider that the carrying
value of the financial iInstrument approximates to therir value
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15 BORROWINGS

Short Term Borrowings Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
€ € € €
Bank loans and overdrafts - 13,700,000 - -
Long Term Borrowings Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
€ € € €

Long term debt 28,915,285 - - -

On 8 March 2012, the Group completed a SEK 200 milion (€22 4 millon) asset-backed bond issue
to investors in the Nordic region The 1ssue constituted a first closing under a bond facility through
which the Group can raise up to SEK 500 milion

On 2 July 2012, the Group completed a second Issue of asset-backed bonds totaling SEK &0
milion {€6 8m) under the bond facility put in place in March 2012 through which the Group can
raise a total of SEK500m The 1ssue follows the completion on 8 March 2012 of the Group's
inaugural bond i1ssue of SEK200m (€22 4m), the proceeds of which were used to refinance the
Group's €17 milion credit faciity with Rietumu Bank and to fund the continued growth of the
Group's consumer loan portfolio

The bonds issued in March 2012 and July 2012 rank as senior obligations of the Group, are
secured against the Group’s outstanding customer loan receivables, have a matunty of three years
and carry a fixed coupon of 13% per annum, paid quarterly in arrears The bonds are affilated to
Euroclear and are hsted on the Corporate Bond List of NASDAQ OMX

16 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group has liabilities from non-cancellable operating leases in respect of office space and long-
term car leases as follows

2012 2011

€ €

Rental payments within 1 year 129,041 92,869
Rental payments over 1 and within 5 years 68,929 108,171
197,970 199,040

Included above are rental payments related to car leases within one year of €27,663 (2011
€8,263), and rental payments related to car leases over 1 and within 5 years of €59,998 (2011
€32,371)

Under the terms of the rental agreement in Lithuania, the office lease expires on 30 April 2014
The lease 1s expected to be extended

Under the terms of the rental agreement in Finland, the office lease expires on 31 December 2013
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17 NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT

RECONCILIATION OF PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE TAXATION TO

OPERATING CASH FLOWS

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011

€ € € €
Operating profit 6,158,390 4,775,781 (334,473) (370,707)
Finance costs - net (3,790,063) (1,200,469) - -
Financing — foreign exchange losses
on borrowings {894,742) - - -
Depreciation 52,999 26,593 - -
Amortisation 85,727 33,499 - -
Employees share options 93,438 94,216 93,438 94,216
Translation on foreign currencies (1,454} - {1,454) -
{Increase)/decrease in dernvatives (918,344} - - -
(Increase)/decrease In receivables (11,045,764) (10,594,579) 317,181 386,911
Increase /(decrease) in payables 874,538 (418,027) 170,712 (28,008)
Cash flow (used in)/generated from
operating activities (9,385,275) {7,282 ,986) 245,404 82,412

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011

€ € €

Cash at bank and in hand 5,655,941 2,170,410 17 1,540

The maximum exposure on cash and cash equivalent balances 1s the carrying value of cash and
cash equiwalents

18 RELATED PARTIES

The Directors consider that the Company does not have an ultimate parent undertaking or
controlling party

During the year, the Group was charged a license fee of €293,129 (2011 €285,559) by MC Global
Limited, and the Group paid MC Global Limited €269,239 (2011 €304,107) The license fee 1s
payable under the terms of a contract dated 19 December 2006, and subsequently amended 27
February 2008, under which the Group has a perpetual, exclusive and irrevocable right to use the
Credif24 brand in Estonia, Lithuania, Latvia, Finland, Czech Republic, Slovakia, Hungary, Poland,
Romania, Slovenia, Croatia, Serbia, Macedonia, Montenegro, Bosnia, Albania, Kosovo, Bulgana,
Moldova, Ukraine and Belarus for consideration of an annual fee of €248,000 per annum, to be
increased annually by the Monetary Union Index of Consumer Prices

During the year, the Group made a second and final payment of €54,598 to MC Global Limited to
acquire outright the Credit 24 brand nghts to operate in the Australian and New Zealand markets
The Group alsc made a payment of €200,000 to MC Global Limited to acquire outnght the Credit 24
brand rights to operate in Sweden, Norway, Denmark and Iceland
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The above resulted in a net amount owed by MC Global Limited of €0 (2011 €23,890) at the end of
the year MC Global Limited 1s a related party by virtue of its minonity shareholding in MCB Finance
Group Plc

Duning the year, the Group paid Kai Karttunen a one-time success fee of €292 545 in relation to his
advisory role in the Group's inaugural 1ssue of senior secured bonds totaling SEK 260 million The
Group paid a further €33,332 to Kai Karttunen in relation to strategic and financing advisory work
duning the year In March 2012, the Group paid AUD 1 (Australian Dollars) to Kai Karttunen for the
acquisition of 100% of Mobile Credit Australia Pty As announced in May 2012, the Group acquired
Mobile Credit Australia Pty, a company with advanced plans for online lending in Australia, to
faciitate MCB Finance’s entry into that market Kar Karttunen 1s a related party by virtue of his
ownership of MC Global Limited

At 31 December 2012, MCB Finance Group Plc owed its subsidiary, MCB Finance AS, €158,672,
including accrued annual interest of €10,544 In 2011, MCB Finance AS owed its parent company,
MCB Finance Group Plc, €311,369 This included accrued annual interest of €nil

Further related party transactions are summarised below

Transactions 2012 2011

€ €
Gross marketing services recetved " - 102,920
IT and Consultancy services received 2 18,280 59,448
Gross marketing services paid " - 118,066
IT and Consultancy services paid 2 18,280 58,287
Balances 2012 2011

€ €

Payables for Gross marketing services " - -

Payables for IT and Consultancy services? 624 1,927

1) Related parties include Clickit Baltic QU
2) Related parties include Miaboratory O, PCT Arvutid AS and Katana Invest Ou

These compantes are considered related parties by virtue of ownership stakes held by certain
employees of the Group

The Company does not have related party transactions other than with the group companies

Transactions with key management personnel 2012 2011

€ €
Loan repaid by Members of Management - {6,300)
Interest from loans given to Members of Management - 331
Interest amounts repaid - {3,218)
Balances with key management personnel 2012 2011

€ €

Receivable from Members of Management - -

Key management and director’s emoluments are disclosed within Note 5 and the director's report of
these financial statements
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On 31March 2012, the Group acquired 100 per cent of the 1ssued share capital of Mobile Credit
Australla Pty The acquired company had advanced plans for online lending in Australia and the
acquisition was completed to faciitate MCB Finance’s entry into that market

The acquisition was for AUD 1 plus the assumption of outstanding liabiliies, resulting 1in a €372,117
addition to goodwill The goodwill ansing from the acquisition reflects the value of the operations
acquired None of the goodwill 1s expected to be deductable for income tax purposes The
contractual value of the assets at the acquisition date was €2,080 and the amount of liabilities was
€374 177

MCB Finance Australia Pty contributed €27, 169 to revenue and €868,391 of expenses to the
Group's result for the period between the date of acquisition and the balance sheet date

The amounts recognized in respect of the identifiable assets acquired and liab!ittes assumed are as
set out In the table below

€
Financial assets 61
Property, plant and equipments 1,999
Indentifiable intangible
asstes -
Financial liabilities (374,177)
Contingency hability -
Total iIdentifiable net
llabilities (372,1186)
Goodwill 372,117
Total consideration 1
Satisfied by
Cash 1
Equity instruments -
Contingent consideration transferred -
Total consideration transferred 1
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition
Cash consideration 1
Less cash and cash equivalent balances acquired (10)
Net cash inflow on acquisition (9

20 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

In 2012, the Group completed two asset-backed bond issues to investers in the Nordic region The
Issue were made under a bond facility through which the Group s able to raise up to SEK 500
million

The bonds 1ssued totaling SEK 260 million (€29 2 million) rank as senior obligations of the Group,
are secured against the Company’s outstanding customer loan receivables, have a matunty of three
years and carry a fixed coupon of 13% per annum, paid quarterly in arrears The bonds are
affiliated to Euroclear and are listed on the Corporate Bond List of NASDAQ OMX

The Group's SEK exposure 1s hedged using Euro/SEK currency options, which imit the Group’s
exposure to a 5% weakening in the value of the Euro over the three year matunty of the bond The
hedge relates to the full amount of principal and interest payable under the terms of the bonds
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The carrying amount at end of the year represents accumulated changes in the fair value of the
currency options The farr value of the denvative instrument upon inihial recognition was €908,908,
which was equal to the cash consideraton The change in the fair value, which was been
recognised 1n profit or loss duning the penod, totalled €9,346 The far value at the reporting date,
which has been recognised within current assets, was €918,344

The fair value of the derivatives 1s established using observable market data and, as such, are
classified as level 1 within the farr value hierarchy

21 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Liquidity risk

The Company and the Group maintains sufficient iquid resources in its operating currencies to
meet its immediate working capital needs Liquid resources are deposited with mainstream
authorised banks or institutions with an equivalent level of prudential supervision Cash deposits
generally have a2 matunty of three months or less The Group’s non-current financial habilities have
a matunty of three years expinng in March 2015 There are no contractual repayments due prior to
the matunty dates in March 2015 (see Note 15)

Credit risk

The Group I1s exposed to credit nisk through its customer loans, both current and non-current  The
Group manages this nsk by the venfication of customer's identity, other personal and financial
information, canfirmation of an acceptable credit history, and daily reviews of the outstanding loan
portfolio supperted by procedures to monitor and manage the repayment process, which includes
the use of reputable and well-established credit collection agencies If the Group's provision against
its outstanding customer receivables, both current and non-current, at 31 December 2012 had been
3% higher or lower, and all other vanables were held constant, then the Group’s profit for the year
ended 31 December 2012 would have decreased or \ncreased by €246,175 {2011 €148,848) The
maximum exposures to credit nsk are the amounts disclosed in Note 12 and 17 The Group’s trade
receivables are all unsecured and are measured at amortised cost

The Company does not provide financial services and 15 thus not exposed to credit nsk through
financial services

The Company and the Group manages the credit nsk related to cash and cash equivalents by
depositing these with mamnstream authorised banks or insttutions with an equivalent level of
prudential supervision

Currency risk

The Group operates within countries which use its functional currency or whose currency 1S
currently pegged to that currency, but also whose currency 1s not pegged to the Group's functional
currency Foreign exchange nsk 1s managed by ensunng any non-Euro cash receipts or payments
are converted to Euros promptly
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The Group's SEK exposure on its outstanding SEK-denominated bonds 1s hedged using Euro/SEK
currency options, which lirmit the Group's exposure to a 5% weakening in the value of the Euro over
the three year maturity of the bond At the reporting date, the bond liabilties denominated in SEK
amounted to €28 9 million

In addition to the bond hability, the countnies whose currency 1s not pegged to the Group's functional
currency have short-term financial assets exposed to currency nsk totalling €0 60 milion and
financial iabilities totalling €1 8 million

Interest rate risk

Investments subject to vanable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate nsk, which 1s the
nsk that future cash flows will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates Borrowings
subject to fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate nsk, as the farr value of the
financral instrument fluctuates because of changes in market interest rates

The Company and the Group I1s exposed to interest rate risk from its cash deposits which, because
of their short maturnties, earn interest on what 1s effectively a floating rate basis

If interest rates had been 0 5% higher or lower, and all other vanables were held constant, then the
Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2012 would have increased or decreased by
€19,600 (2011 €2,000) due to the Group's exposure to vanable interest rates on its cash deposits

The Group pays interest on the bonds i1ssued during 2012 The Group I1s not exposed o Interest
rate movements on its borrowings since they are held at a fixed rate The borrowings are reported
as amortized costs and, as such, the carrying value of the borrowings 1s not exposed to farr value
nterest rate nsk

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as going
concerns while maximising the return {o stakehaolders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity mix The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from the prior year The capital
structure of the Group consists of net debt (borrowings as detailed in Note 15, offset by cash and
bank balances as detailed in Note 17) and equity of the Group (compnising 1ssued capital, reserves,
and retained earnings as detalled in the consolidated statement of changes in equity)

In 2012, the debt outstanding of the Group consisted of SEK 260 million {(Eure 29 2 million) asset-
backed bonds I1ssue to investors in the Nordic region during 2012 Proceeds from the 1ssue have
been used to fund the continued growth of the Group's consumer loan portfolio and to refinance the
Company's outstanding faciity with Rretumu Bank

As part of its continued growth and development strategy, the Company s expected to have on-
going financing needs, which it envisages meeting through a combination of future debt, equity and
subordinated capital issuance

The Group I1s not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements

In order to maintain or adjust its camtal structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, 1Issue new shares or seli assets to reduce debt
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To ensure flexibiity regarding its future funding and capital needs, the Company secured
bondholder approval in January 2013 for a change to the current defimbon of its Equity Ratio
covenant to allow the issuance of a range of subordinated capital instruments, in addition to
common equity The Company also secured approval from its bondholders for a change 1n the
terms and conditions of its bond agreement relating to the currency denominatton of future bond
iIssues, which will allow the issuance of Euro-denominated, in addtion to Swedish Krona
denominated, bonds The issuance of bonds denominated in Euros would have the effect of
reducing the Company’s foretgn exchange nsk and reduce the associated hedging costs relating to
non-Euro denominated issues

In March 2013, the Group raised SEK 45 million (equivalent to approximately EUR 54 mullion)
through a SEK denominated unsecured subordinated note 1ssue to investors in the Nordic region
The 1ssue constitutes a first closing under a multicurrency facility through which the Group can raise
up to SEK 100 million (equivalent to approximately EUR 12 million)

The subgrdinated note facility provides additional flexibility for the Company with respect to its
funding and caprtal needs The Company will use the proceeds to provide additional funding for the
continued growth of the Group’s consumer loan portfolio in both current and new markets

The notes rank as subordinated obligations of the Company and are unsecured The notes were
issied at par, have a matunty of two years and carry a fixed coupen of 18% per annum, paid
quarterly in arrears The Company has a nght to extend the matunty by one year against a coupon
step-up of 2% per annum The notes will be affilated to Euroclear Sweden and the Company has
undertaken to use its best efforts to ensure that the notes are listed on the regulated market of
NASDAQ OMX Stockholm prior to 19 June 2013

The Company's Nominated Adviser and Broker, Merchant Securnities Limited, changed its name to
Sanlam Secunties UK Limited in March 2013

There have been some changes In the ownership of MCB Finance Plc shares since the reporting
date The significant shareholdings as of 8th February 2013 were as follows

2013 February 2013 February
No of shares Percentage of 1ssued
ordinary shares

Notifier

Mobile Credit Finland Oy 3,982,096 22 55%
IIU Nominees Limited 2,581,281 14 62%
Onent Equity Partners 2,129,504 12 06%
Boxtel Oy 1,805,974 10 23%
Henry Nilert 1,228,222 6 95%
P Lorange 844 021 478%
P Duleyne 803 961 4 55%
Europanel AB 740 000 4 19%
Conils Ltd 681 577 3 86%
Hansa Eastern European Equity Fund 533 333 302%
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